District of Columbia Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation (TSFC)
Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 5, 2023

Board Members Present

e Carmen Pigler (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Deputy Chief Financial
Officer)

e Betsy Cavendish (Executive Office of the Mayor, General Counsel)
e Jen Budoff (DC Council, Budget Director)

Other Attendees/Invitees:

e Paula Keys (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of Finance and Treasury)

Tracy Ferguson (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of the General Counsel)
Corinthian Davis (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of the General Counsel)
Erin Law (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of the General Counsel)

Brian Caldwell (Office of the Attorney General)

Debra Taylor (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of Finance and Treasury)

Darryl Street (Office of the Chief Financial Officer, Office of Finance and Treasury)
I Meeting called to order by Betsy Cavendish

1. Old Business
a. Minutes: Carmen Pigler proposes review of September 29, 2022 minutes.

b. FY22 Audited Financials: Carmen Pigler reported on the FY22 Audited Financials
from Watsons LLC. Corporation received a clean audit. Assets totaled
appoximately$75.9 million including $48 million in cash and cash equivalents, $27.6
in accrued tobacco settlement receivables, $91,000 in interest receivable and
$14,000 in pre-paid expenses. $47.5 million of the cash was in a restricted account
for the payment of outstanding debt.

In FY22 S45.6 million of total debt service was paid including $29.6 million in
principal and $16 million in interest. For FY22 total the total fund balances increased
by $2.5 million or 3% as a result of higher tobacco settlement receivables. Current
liabilities decreased by $150,000 from the prior year because of lower accrued
payables. Tobacco settlement revenue in FY22 totaled $48 million.



Jennifer Budoff asked for the final maturity date of the bonds. Paula Keys
responded that the final maturity is 2055. Carmen Pigler indicated that this
financing does not count towards the District’s debt cap. Brian Caldwell indicated
that Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) payments occur in perpetuity or until the
tobacco companies go bankrupt.

Betsy Cavendish asked for a motion to accept the FY22 Audited Financials. Jennifer
Budoff made the motion and Carmen Pigler seconded it. All present members voted
in favor.

MSA Annual Discussion: Brian Caldwell presented the MSA payments from 2024-
2026. The National Association of Attorneys General oversees payments from the
tobacco settlement funds and makes projections of future payments. Projections
are made assuming all owing payments are made by the tobacco companies without
dispute. Approximately $37.8 million is predicted for FY24 then less in FY25 and
beyond. Projections were also provided with possible disputes withheld, which are
approximately $10 million lower than without withholdings.

Projections are intended to be conservative. Projections are made with the
assumption that year-over-year consumption will decline by 11%, which is very
conservative. Under the MSA there is an inflation adjustment minimum of 3% year
over year but will be increased, with last year at 6.45%.

Brian Caldwell indicated that the MSA does not cover JUUL or other vaping products.
Brian Caldwell indicated that disputes are listed in the MSA after a question from
Carmen Pigler. Brian Caldwell indicated that adjustments are rarely significant. The
only major adjustment is the Non-Participating Manufacturer (NPM) adjustment for
non-participating tobacco manufacturing companies, which are subject to a current
settlement discussion. The NPM adjustment is approximately 20% of the MSA.

The NPM has been settled every year through 2022. This is the first year that no
settlement is in place for the NPM adjustment. States and tobacco companies are in
ongoing negotiations for 2023-2025. Currently the sticking point is that the NPM
adjustment whereby the tobacco companies would get 20% and the jurisdictions
would get 80%.

1. New Business

a.

Actual FY22/Projected FY23 Budget: Carmen Pigler reported that the budget was
approximately $1,000,000 in revenues and expenses were approximately $385,000.
Expenses are related to accounting services, maintaining rating surveillance from the
rating agencies and escrow fees for banks holding funds. FY23 projections are
$672,000 in revenues and $225,000 in expenses. Betsy Cavendish asked if expenses
could be reduced. Carmen Pigler indicated that rating agency surveillance fees and




the auditor fees are fixed. Paula Keys indicated that the largest cost is the auditor.
Paula Keys indicated that there were reductions in costs as fees associated with
NPM settlement litigation has ended. Paula Keys also indicated that there is a full-
time tax compliance officer in the District Office of Tax and Revenues. Brian Caldwell
indicated that the full-time employee provides monthly reports on consumption and
compliance.

b. Board Vacancy Update: Jennifer Budoff indicated that she followed up with
Chairman Mendelson’s office and there is no new information on the appointment
to the Board.

Adjournment: Carmen Pigler indicated that her office would follow up on the duties of
the employee in OTR. Betsy Cavendish indicated that she typically sees administration
costs less than one-third (1/3) of revenues and indicated that 5-10% is more common.

Betsy Cavendish asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Carmen Pigler made a
motion to adjourn the meeting and Jennifer Budoff seconded the motion.





